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NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT  the 38th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Mega Fin 

(India) Limited is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, September 30, 2020 at 11:30 A.M. through Video 

Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means in accordance with the relevant circulars issued by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India:  

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

 

The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2020, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Shweta Phanse (DIN: 0714621), who retires by rotation and 

being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 

 

 

 

Registered Office: 

 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, 

Shiv Sagar Estate, F Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, 

Worli, Mumbai – 400018. 

Date: September 02,2020 

Place: Mumbai 

By Order of the Board of Directors of 

Mega Fin (India) Limited 

 

Shweta Phanse 

Director 

DIN: 07146218 

 

NOTES 

 

1. In view of the continuing restrictions on the movement of people at several places in the country, due 

to outbreak of COVID-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circular No. 

20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and 

General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and other applicable circulars issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), has allowed the Companies to conduct the AGM 

through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) during the calendar year 

2020. In accordance with, the said circulars of MCA, SEBI and applicable provisions of the Act and 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), the 

38th AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. Central Depository Services India 

Ltd (‘CDSL’) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM 
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through VC / OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The detailed procedure for participating in 

the meeting through VC / OAVM Facility is mentioned hereunder in this notice and is also available 

on the website of the Company at www.megafinindia.com. 

 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to 

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the 

Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular through VC 

/ OAVM Facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility 

for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 39th AGM of the Company 

and therefore the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

 

3. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2") 

of the persons seeking re-appointment / appointment as Directors under Item No. 2 of the Notice, are 

also attached. The Company has received relevant disclosures / consents from the Directors seeking 

re-appointment / appointment. 

 

4. Institutional / Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF / JPEG format) of the 

Board Resolution authorising its representatives to attend and vote at the AGM, pursuant to Section 

113 of the Act, at info@megafinindia.com 

 

5. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act and Regulation 42 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Register of 

Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 24th 

September, 2020 to Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 (both days inclusive). 

 

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ID FOR 

OBTAINING COPY OF ANNUAL REPORT: 

 

6. In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 issued by MCA and 

Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 issued by SEBI, owing to 

the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the financial statements (including Report 

of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents required to be attached therewith), such 

statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail 

address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). 

 

7. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the 

Company are requested to update their email addresses by writing to the Company at 

info@megafinindia.com also to our Registrar & Transfer Agent  (RTA) Bigshare Services Private 
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Limited at jibu@bigshareonline.com along with the copy of the signed request letter mentioning the 

name and address of the Member, self-attested copy of the PAN card, and self-attested copy of any 

document (eg.: Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the address of the 

Member. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their 

email addresses with the relevant Depository Participants. In case of any queries / difficulties in 

registering the e-mail address, Members may write to our RTA Bigshare Services Private Limited at 

jibu@bigshareonline.com& to the Company at info@megafinindia.com 

 

8. The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20, is available on the 

website of the Company at info@megafinindia.com, on the website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 

Limited and on the website of CDSL at https://helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com . 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

9. Members will be provided with a facility toattend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-

Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under 

shareholders/members login by using the remote evoting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be 

available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

 

10. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 

11. Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

12. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective 

network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 

aforesaid glitches. 

 

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL REPORT: 

13. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the 

AGM, Members are encouraged to express their views / send their queries in advance mentioning 

their name demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile number at info@megafinindia.com 

Questions / queries received by the Company till 5.00 p.m. on Monday, 28th September, 2020 shall 

only be considered and responded during the AGM. 

 

14. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register 

themselves as a speaker by visiting the link https://helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com between 10.00 

a.m. on Saturday, 26th September, 2020 and 5.00 p.m. on Monday, 28th September, 2020. 
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15. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as 

appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

 

 PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:  

  

16. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide the 

facility to Members to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM by 

electronic means by the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

 

17. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on 

Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020, i.e. the date prior to the commencement of book closure, being 

the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A person who is not a 

Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose only. 

 

18. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting. 

 

i) Open your web browser during the voting period and log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com 

ii) Now click on “Shareholders” to cast your votes 

iii) User-ID For Members holding shares in Demat Form:- 

A. For CDSL: – 16 digits beneficiary ID For Members holding shares in Physical Form:- 

B. Folio Number registered with the Company 

iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 

an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
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vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 

vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of 

any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 

through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 

person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

x) Click on the EVSN for Mega Fin (India) Limited. 

 

xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits 

of the folio/client id number in the PAN Field. 

 

 In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 

before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. 

Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 1 then enter RA00000001 

in the PAN Field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company 

records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. 
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xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 

the Voting page. 

 

xvi) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 

xvii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can 

be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile 

app while Remote Voting on your mobile. 

 

xviii) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.  

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which 

they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 

to verify the same. 

 

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or 

write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at1800225533. 

 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai – 400013. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

19. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

Remote e-voting. 

 

20. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e- voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system available during the AGM. 

 

21. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast 

by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 

available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

22. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e- Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION:  

 

23. The voting rights shall be as per the number of equity shares held by the Member(s) as on 

Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020, being the cut-off date. Members are eligible to cast vote 

electronically only if they are holding shares as on that date. 

 

24. The Company has appointed Aabid & Co., Firm of Practising Company Secretary, to act as the 

Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Members 

desiring to vote through remote e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given 

hereinafter. 

 

25. The results of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchange after the conclusion of 

AGM. The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall also be placed on the website of the 

Company at www.megafinindia.com and on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com  

 

PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

26. All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be 

available for inspection through electronic mode, basis the request being sent on 

info@megafinindia.com. 
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27. During the AGM, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which 

Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act shall be available for inspection upon login at 

CDSL e-voting system at https://www.evotingindia.com. 

 

OTHERS: 

 

28. In terms of Section 152 of the Act,A brief resume of each of the Director proposed to be appointed/ 

re-appointed at this AGM, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies 

in which she hold directorship and membership/ chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding 

and relationship between directors inter se as stipulated under Regulation 36 of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

other requisite information as per Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, are provided in 

Annexure – I respectively. 

 

29. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from, 1st April, 2019, except in case of request 

received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks 

associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in 

physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form. 

 

30. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated 20th April, 2018 has 

mandated registration of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account Details for all 

securities holders. Members holding shares in physical form are therefore, requested to submit their 

PAN and Bank Account Details to Big Share Services Private Limited RTA  of the Company by 

sending a duly signed letter along with self-attested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled cheque 

through email at jibu@bigshareonline.comand info@arshiyalimited.com. The original cancelled 

cheque should bear the name of the Member. In the alternative Members are requested to submit a 

copy of bank passbook / statement attested by the bank. Members holding shares in demat form are 

requested to submit the aforesaid information to their respective Depository Participant. 
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ANNEXURE- I 

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING 

 

[Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015] 

 

Name of the Director Mrs. Shweta Phanse 

Director Identification 

Number 
07146218 

Date of Birth  21/09/1970 

Date of Appointment on the 

Board 
 31/03/2005 

Qualification Graduate Degree with expertise in Compliance & allied matters 

Expertise 

Expertise With over a decades of varied experience in business and industry 

spanning She is also active with various social reform and community service 

organizations. 

Directorship held in other 

companies 

 MEGA CUSTODIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

 NORDICA REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED  

 RUDRADEV PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED  

 ROCKHILL PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 WELLDONE SOFTWARE CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED 

 LAXMIPATI MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 MEGA CAPITAL BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED 

 ARSHIYA FOUNDATIO 

 FLAT WORLD PROCESSES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

Committee position held in 

other companies 

 None  

 

Shareholding of Director As 

on March 31, 2020 
Nil  

Meetings attended 4 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors are hereby present their 38th Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the 

financial year ended 31st March,2020. 

1. RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS 

Summarized Standalone Financial Results- Mega Fin (India) Limited 

Particulars Year Ended 

31.03.2020 

(Rs.) 

Year Ended 

31.03.2019 

(Rs.) 

Income  2252895 2110846 

Expenditure 2144525 2153386 

Profit/(Loss) Before Depreciation and Tax (705590) (42540) 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional Items (705590) (42540) 

Exceptional Items (Net) Nil Nil 

Prior period Items(Net) Nil Nil 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax (705590) (42540) 

 
 

i.) Results of operations: 

 

During the year under review your Company has reported a total income of ₹22,52,895 as compared 

to ₹21,10,846 for the previous year. Further, your Company has reported loss of ₹7,05,590 as 

compared to the loss of ₹ 42,540 in previous year. 

 
ii.) Dividend 

 

In view of accumulated losses, your Directors regret their inability to recommend dividend for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 

 

iii.) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments by company 

 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to Financial Statements. 
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iv.) Fixed Deposits 

 

The Company has not accepted any deposits, within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

v.) Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with related party (ies) 

 

All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and 

in the ordinary course of business and that the provisions of sections 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

are not attracted. Thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. Further, there are no material 

related party transactions during the year under review with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial 

Personnel. The Company has developed a Related Party Transactions framework through Standards 

Operating Procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions. 

 

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also before the Board for 

approval. Omnibus approval was obtained on a quarterly basis for transactions which are of repetitive 

nature. Transactions entered into pursuant to omnibus approval are audited and a statement giving 

details of all Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and Board for review 

and approval on a quarterly basis. 

 

     The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been uploaded 

on the website of the Company. The web link of the same has been provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-à-vis the 

Company. 

 

vi.) Material changes and commitment, if any, affecting the financial position of the company occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the 

report 

 

  No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate on the date of this report. 

 

vii.) Share Capital 

 

The paid- up equity share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2020 stood at Rs. 9,17,78,500/- 

(Rupees Nine Crore Seventeen lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Five Hundred only) 
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I.) BUSINESS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

 

i.) Business 

 

Mega Fin (India) Limited (MFIL) is a part of the India’s private sector financial services companies, 

the Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).The Company is a core 

investment Company & has interests in financing and advancing short term and long term loans 

and credits to individuals, companies or association of individuals by whatever name called; 

merchant banking; commercial financing; stock broking; other activities in financial services. 

 

ii.) Subsidiaries and Associates 

 

During the year, Your Company disposed of its subsidiary company namely Mega Capital Broking 

Private Limited on 08th January, 2020. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2020 your Company does not 

have any Subsidiary Company or Associate Company. 

II.)   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at 

enhancing an organization’s brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business 

decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment to values, while meeting stakeholders’ 

expectations. The Company has been following the principles of good Corporate Governance over 

the years and lays strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into with BSE, a separate 

section on Corporate Governance forms part of this Annual Report. 

i.) Number of meetings of the Board 

 

During the year Four Meetings were held. The details of the meetings of the Board held during the 

financial year 2019-20 forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap 

between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days as prescribed by Regulation 17 of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 

2013. 

ii.) Committees of the Board 

 

Currently the Board have 3 Committees namely Committee of Directors, Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Share Transfer, Investor Grievances & 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee. A detailed note on Board and its committees is provided 

under the corporate governance section to this annual report. 
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iii.) Board Diversity 

 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. We 

believe that a truly diverse board will leverage difference in thought, perspectives, knowledge, skill, 

regional and industry experience, cultural and geographical background. The Board has adopted 

the Policy on Board Diversity which sets out the approach to diversity of the Board of Directors and 

the same is available on our website www.megafinindia.com. 

iv.) Remuneration and Nomination Policy 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Promoter Director and Non-

Executive Independent Directors, who have knowledge of the business and industry. The composition 

of the Board is in conformity the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 with the Stock Exchanges and Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Policy Personnel and Senior Management of the 

Company. This Policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members.  

 

v.) Declaration by Independent Directors 

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as 

laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

vi.) Board evaluation 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement & 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a structured 

questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration of the various aspects of the Board’s 

functioning, composition of the Board and its Committees, culture, execution and performance of 

specific duties, obligations and governance. 

 

The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria 

and framework adopted by the Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the non- 

independent Director(s) wascarried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

None of the independent directors are due for re- appointment. 
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vii.)  Programmes for familiarisation of Independent Directors 

 

The details of programmes for familiarisation of Independent Directors with the Company, nature of 

the Industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and related matters 

are put up on the website of the Company i.e. 

http://megafinindia.com/downloads/Familiarisation%20Programmes.pdf 

 

viii.)  Appointment  

 

During the year Ms. Sonal Gupta was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. May,2019 and Mr. 

Mahesh Mahatre was appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. May,2019 

 

Also during the year Mr. Mahesh Sharma was appointed as Independent Director by Shareholders 

in their meeting held on 30th September,2020 office for the period of Five years. 

 

ix.)  Resignation 

 

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personal resigned from Company. 

 

Ms. Mandeep Chhabra, Company secretary of the Company resigned w.e.f. 30th July,2020.  

 

x.)  Re-appointment 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Company’s Articles of Association, Mrs. Shweta Phanse – Director will be retire by rotation and 

being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

 

Brief details of the Director proposed to be appointed / Re – appointed as required under SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in the notice of 

the Annual General Meeting and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. 

 

xi.)   Directors responsibility statement 

 

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies 

Act, 2013: 
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a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures, if any; 

 

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for the 

year ended on that date; 

 

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e) that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and  

 

f) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

III.) AUDIT AND AUDITORS’ 

 

i.) Statutory Auditors’   

 

 Kankani Jain Chopra and Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, Statutory Auditors of the 

Company, was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five year from the 

conclusion of 35thAnnual General Meeting till the conclusion of 40thAnnual General Meeting to be held 

in the year 2022. The requirement of Annual ratification of Auditors’ appointment at the AGM has been 

omitted pursuant to the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018. 

 

Auditors Report: 

Qualifications in the Audit Report is as under: 

The Financial statement have been prepared by the management on a going concern basis even though 

the company has substantial accumulated losses, its activity is stand still and it has eroded its Net Worth 

in respect of which we are unable to express an opinion whether the Company can now operate as a 

going concern or not. 
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Management’s response to the qualifications in the Audit Report is as under: 

The Company is taking reasonable steps to improve the financial stability of the Company and to revive 

the company. 

 

ii.) Secretarial Audit 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the 

Company has appointed Aabid & Co, Practising Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit 

of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is included as Annexure-I to this Report. 

Secretarial Standards Compliance 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 

Government pursuant to Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

iii.) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts 

 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

iv.) Internal control systems and their adequacy 

 

Your Company has an effective internal control and risk mitigation system, which are constantly 

assessed and strengthened with new/ revised standard operating procedures. The Company’s internal 

control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The main thrust 

of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes, besides 

benchmarking controls with best practices in the industry. 

 

The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems 

and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has a robust Management 

Information System, which is an integral part of the control mechanism. 

 

The Audit Committee, Statutory Auditors and the Business Heads are periodically apprised of the 

internal audit findings and corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit 

Committee. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the internal Audit function reports to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
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IV) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In accordance with Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in Form No. 

MGT-9 has been placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 

http://www.megafinindia.com 

V) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

Your Company sincerely believes that growth needs to be sustainable in a socially relevant manner. 

Today’s business environment especially in India therefore demands that corporates play a pivotal role 

in shouldering social responsibility. Your Company is committed to its endeavor in social 

responsibilities for benefit of the community.  

 

VI) HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication shown by its employees in 

all areas of business. The Company has a structured induction process at all locations and 

management development programs to upgrade skills of managers. Objective appraisal systems based 

on Key Result Areas (KRAs) are in place for senior management staff. The Company is committed to 

nurturing, enhancing and retaining top talent through superior Learning and Organizational 

Development. This is a part of Corporate HR function and is a critical pillar to support the organization’s 

growth and its sustainability in the long run. 

 

Further statutory disclosures w.r.t. Human Resources are as under: 

i.) As required by the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formulated and implemented a policy on Sexual Harassment 

(Wiz as updated on the website of the Company http://megafinindia.com/ ) at workplace with a 

mechanism of lodging complaints. Its redressal is placed on the internet for the benefit of its 

employees. During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the Board. 

 

ii.) None of the Managerial personnel is being paid any remuneration and hence the information required 

under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not relevant. 

 

None of the employees listed is a relative of any director of the Company. None of the employees hold 

(by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children) more than two percent of the equity 

shares of the Company. 
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Key Managerial Personnel 

Sl. 

No.  
Designation Name of Persons 

1.  Chief Executive Officer Mahesh Mhatre Gajanan 

2.  Company Secretary Mandeep Chhabra (upto 30th July,2020) 

3.  Chief Financial Officer Sonal Gupta 

 
VII) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 

Companies Act, 2013, forms part of Annual Report. 

 

VIII) VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  

 

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to report genuine 

concerns or grievances. The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the 

Company’s website i.e. http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

IX) RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Your Company is well aware of risks associated with its business operations and various projects under 

execution. Comprehensively risk management system is being put in place involving classification of risk, 

adoption of risk mitigation measures and a strong mechanism to deal with potential risks and situation 

leading to rise of risks in an effective manner. 

Senior Professionals conversant with risk management systems have been entrusted with the said task 

with a brief to implement the risk management. 

 

X) HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT: 

 

As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company lays considerable emphasis on health, safety 

aspects of its human capital, operations and overall working conditions. Thus being constantly aware 

of its obligation towards maintaining and improving the environment, all possible steps are being taken 

to meet the toughest environmental standards on pollution, effluents, etc. across various spheres of its 

business activities. 
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XI) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO 

 

The Information under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Company 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to your Company.  There neither were any earnings nor 

outgo of Foreign Exchange. 

 

XII)     STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges is not applicable to your Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2020. 

 

XIII) LISTING: 
 

At present the Company’s Equity Shares are listed at BSE Limited and the Company has paid 

Listing Fees to the above Stock Exchanges for the year 2020-2021. 

XIV)   IMPACT OF COVID-19  

During the last quarter of FY 2020, COVID-19 spread globally and in India. This had an impact on 

the business operations of the Company. We started our preparation to respond to this crisis from 

early March. The company implemented various precautionary measures at each workplace to 

ensure personal safety and business continuity, such as temperature monitoring, frequent use of 

hand sanitisers, use of face masks, frequent sanitation of frequently touched surfaces etc. Our 

Office switched to working with much lower attendance. . We also enabled key employees across 

the Company to a Work from Home set-up. This ensured continuity and constant ability to support 

the business. 
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XIV)  APPRECIATION   

 

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the assistance, support and co-operation 

received from Government of India, the State Governments and other Government agencies and 

departments, investors, bankers, financial institutions and all other stakeholders. 

 

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed 

services by the executives, staff and workers of the Company. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

MEGA FIN (INDIA) LIMITED 

 

 

Ajay S Mittal           Shweta Atul Phanse                   

                                                            Director                              Director  

                                                                                                   DIN: 00226355                      DIN: 07146218               

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: 02nd September, 2020 

  



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

22 

ANNEXURE 1 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2020 

 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Mega Fin (India) Limited 

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, 

Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 Maharashtra 

 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Mega Fin (India) Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”) 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verifications of the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 

Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on31st March, 2020complied with 

the  statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the Books, Papers, and Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder. 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder. 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder is not 

applicable to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):- 

 

a) The  Securities  and   Exchange   Board   of  India   (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and     Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme)Guidelines, 1999/ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable during the audit period) 

 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not applicable during the audit period); 

 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 

applicable during the audit period); and 

 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable during the audit period) 

 

We have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Woman Director. The 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under reviewwere 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exist for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 

meeting. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, 

Regulations and Guidelines. 

 

Note: 

 

1. This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-I’ and forms an 

integral part of this report. 

 

Place: Mumbai For Aabid & Co 

Date: 30th July, 2020 Company Secretaries 

Shweta Dinesh Sharma 

Partner 

Membership No.: A23466 

COP No.: 22002 

UDIN: A023466B000533811 
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ANNEXURE-I 

To, 

The Members, 

Mega Fin (India) Limited 

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, 

Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 Maharashtra 

 

Our report of even date is to be read with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was done on a 

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 

and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts of 

the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained Management Representation about the compliance laws, rules 

and regulations, and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a 

test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

of the Company describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or predictions may be forward looking 

within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Forward looking statements are based on 

certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these 

assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. 

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

Indian Economic Environment 

The new government presented the Budget for the FY2018-19 which focussed on growth, weaker sections 

and social security and at the same time, fiscal responsibility was maintained. A bulk of the Budget 

spending was directed towards infrastructure rather than consumption and subsidies and, as a result, the 

quality of the deficit has improved too.  During the year, the government also tried to give a fillip to MSME 

sector, which contributes to 37.5% of the country’s GDP, through various programmers, including the Prime 

Minister’s Employment Generation Programme, Micro and Small Enterprises-Cluster Development 

Programme, Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Micro and Small Enterprises, Performance and Credit 

Rating Scheme, Assistance to Training Institutions, and Scheme of Fund for Regeneration of Traditional 

Industries, amongst others. The Economic Survey acknowledged that these 36.1 million entities have a 

critical role in boosting industrial growth and ensuring the success of the ‘Make in India’ programme During 

FY14, the GDP growth was well below 5% and has shown recovery from the first quarter of FY 2017 where 

the GDP growth rate moved to 7.1%. The World Bank has estimated that the GDP growth for India for the 

year FY2017-18 would be around 7.6%, as per the new series of calculating GDP (part GDP data not 

comparable). 

 

INFLATION AND INTEREST RATE 

On the monetary front, the RBI kept policy rates unchanged until December 2014, despite easing in 

inflationary trends. The central bank later cut repo rates bringing it down to 6.00% and signalling a 

softening in its monetary policy stance. Despite this initiation of monetary easing, the real impact will be 

seen over the next 12 months as it translates into lower interest rates. The RBI clarified that the major 

determinants of further rate cuts would be the transmission of the rate reductions and food inflation. 

Nevertheless, interest rates are bound to continue to trend downwards as inflation has come down 

significantly and steadily and the CAD, fiscal deficit and oil are under control. 
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ABOUT MEGA FIN LIMITED 

Mega Fin (India) Limited (MFIL) is a part of the India’s leading private sector financial services companies, 

MFIL the Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) The Company is a core 

investment Company & has interests in financing and advancing short term and long term loans and credits 

to individuals, companies or association of individuals, companies or association of individuals by whatever 

name called,; merchant banking; commercial financing; stock broking; other activities in financial services. 
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 Risks and Concerns 

 

MFIL is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its businesses and the environment within which 

it operates, including market risk, credit risk, operational risk, competition risk, liquidity and interest 

rate risk, regulatory risk, human resource risk, execution risk, information security risks and macro-

economic risks. 

 

 Market risk 

 

The Company has some quoted investments which are exposed to fluctuations in stock prices. 

Similarly company has also raised resources through issue of Market Linked Debentures, whose 

returns are linked to relevant underlying market instruments / indices. MFIL continuously monitors 

market exposure for both equity and debt and, in appropriate cases, also uses various derivative 

instruments as a hedging mechanism to limit volatility. 

 

 Competition risk 

 

The financial sector industry is becoming increasingly competitive and the Company’s growth will 

depend on its ability to compete effectively.TheCompany’smaincompetitorsare Indian non-banking 

financial companies, commercial banks,  life and non-life insurance companies, both in the public and 

private sector, mutualfunds, broking houses, mortgage lenders, depository participants and other 

financial services providers. Foreign banks also operate in India through non-banking finance 

companies. Further liberalisation of the Indian financial sector could lead to a greater presence or 

entry of new foreign banks and financial services companies offering a wider range of products and 

services.This could significantlytoughen our competitive environment. The Company’s strong brand 

image, wide distribution network, diversified product offering and depth ofmanagementplaceit in 

astrongposition to deal withcompetition effectively. 

 

 Interest rate volatility:  

 

Fluctuations in interest rates could adversely affect borrowing costs, interest income and net interest 

margins of companies in the financial sector. Being well funded with a strong shareholder base, MFIL 

is trying to tide over such spells. 
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 Internal Control Systems 

 

The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide a high degree of assurance 

regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the 

reliability of financial controls, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

The organization is well structured and the policy guidelines are well documented with pre-defined 

authority. The Company has also implemented suitable controls to ensure that all resources are 

utilised optimally, financial transactions are reported with accuracy and there is strict adherence to 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 Opportunities 

 

   Low retail penetration of financial services / products in India  

   Tremendous brand strength and extensive distribution reach  

   Opening of the financial sector in India in near future 

   Opportunity to cross sell services 

   Increasing per-capita GDP 

 Changing demographic profile of the country in favour of the young 

 

 Threats 

 

    Inflationary pressures and slowdown in policy making  

    Competition from local and multinational players 

    Execution risk 

    Regulatory changes 

    Attraction and retention of human capital 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report may contain certain forward-looking 
statements based on various assumptions on the Company’s present and future business strategies and the 
environment in which it operates. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or 
implied due to risk and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and 

political conditions in India and abroad, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations 
and Government policies that may impact the Company’s businesses as well as the ability to implement its 
strategies. The information contained herein is as of the date referenced and the Company does not 
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undertake any obligation to update these statements. The Company has obtained all market data and other 
information from sources believed to be reliable or its internal estimates, although its accuracy or 

completeness cannot be guaranteed. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

The Company emphasizes the need for full transparency and accountability in all its transactions, in 

order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. The Board considers itself as a Trustee of its 

Shareholders and acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for creating and safeguarding their 

wealth.Your Company continuously endeavours to uphold the values of transparency, integrity, 

professionalism and accountability, and improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis to help the 

Company move forward. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

Our Corporate Governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate 

information regarding our financials and performance, as well as leadership and governance of the 

Company. The framework ensures effective engagement with our stakeholders and help us to be 

guided by our core values, and the same time allows us to do more and be more for our stakeholders.   

 

We firmly believe that an active, well-informed and independent board is necessary to ensure higher 

standard of Corporate Governance and to bring objectivity and transparency in the management and in 

the dealings of the Company.  As at 31st March, 2020, the Board consist of Four Members of which two 

are independent directors. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (“Board”) 

 

a) Composition of Board: 

We believe that our Board needs to have an appropriate mix of Executive and Independent Directors 

to maintain its independence and separate its functions of governance and management. Our Board 

has an optimum combination of Promoter Director and Non-Executive Independent Directors, who are 

from diverse fields and have knowledge of the business and industry.  

 

As at March 31, 2020, our Board consist of Four Members with Promoter Director, One Woman 

Director, and Three Non-Executive Independent Directors. The composition of our Board is in 

conformity with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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Directorship in other listed entities including category of Directorship: 

 

Name of Director Listed Entities Category of Directorship 

Mr. Ajay S Mittal Arshiya Limited Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

and also Promoter 

Mrs. Shweta Phanse NIL Non-Executive –Non -Independent Director 

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma NIL Non-Executive - Independent Director 

Mr. Pramod Raghavan NIL Non-Executive - Independent Director 

 

Detail of Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of Directors: 

The Board of Directors has identified certain skills, expertise and competence as may be required in 

the context of its business viz., Positive attitude, Attention or concern for shareholder's interest, 

Promptness, Contribution in improving financial and other functions of the Company, Inputs on 

inclusion of matters to be discussed at Board Meetings to improvise the operating procedures, 

Understanding of laws having impact on Company's business and Trading industry as a whole. The 

Board of Directors is competent in terms of above said skills/ expertise and competence. 

b)  Role of Board of Directors: 

The primary role of Board is that trusteeship to protect and enhance Stakeholders value through 

strategic direction to the Company. As trustees, the Board has fiduciary responsibility to ensure that 

the company has clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth.The Board exercises its 

duties with care, skill and diligence and exercises independent judgement.The Board sets strategic 

goals and seeks accountability for their fulfilment. The Board also directs and exercises appropriate 

control to ensure that the company is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders’ aspirations and 

societal expectations.   

 

c) Board Membership Criteria: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the entire Board to determine the 

appropriate characteristics, skills and experience required for the Board as a whole and for individual 

members. Members are expected to possess the required qualifications, integrity, expertise and 

experience for the position. They should also possess deep expertise and insights in sectors/areas 

relevant to the company, and ability to contribute to the company’s growth. 

 

d) Attendance at Board Meetings: 

During the year under consideration six meetings of the Board were held on 14th May,2019, 30th May, 

2019, 14th August, 2019, 05th September, 2019, 14th November, 2019 and 06th February, 2020, 
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The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings held 

during the year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held by 

them in other companies are given herein below.Other Directorships do not include directorships in 

Private Limited Companies, Section 8 Companies and Companies incorporated outside 

India.Chairmanships of Board Committees include only Audit and Share Transfer and Investor 

Relations Committee. 

 

 

PD: Promoter Director, WD: Woman Director, ED: Executive Director: NEID: Non- Executive Independent 

Director 

 

e) Independent Directors: 

The Company abided by definition of “Independent director” as per the Provision of Section 149 (6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.The company has obtained declarations from all the Independent Directors 

pursuant to section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

the Director 

Category Number of Board 

meetings held 

during the Yr. 2019 

– 2020 and 

Director's 

Attendance 

Director 

ships in 

other Public 

Companies 

Membership / 

Chairmanship of 

Committees in other 

Public Companies 

Attendan

ce at the 

A.G.M 

Held on 

30th 

Septemb

er, 2019 

      Held Attended   Chairman Membership   

1. Mr. Ajay S 

Mittal 

PD 6 5 7 0 3 Present 

2. Mrs. 

Shweta 

Phanse  

WD 6 4 2 0 0 Present 

3. Mr. Pramod 

Raghavan 

NEID 6 5 0 0 0 Present 

4. Mr. Mahesh 

Kumar 

Sharma 

NEID 6 2 0 0 0 Present 
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f)    Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors: 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, it mandate that the 

independent directors of the Company hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of 

non-independent directors and members of the Management. It is recommended that all the 

independent directors of the Company be present at such meetings.  

 

A meeting of the Independent Directors held on 14th November, 2019, without the attendance of 

Non-Independent Directors and Member of Management. All the Independent Directors were 

present at the meeting.  

 

g) Training of Independent Directors: 

Whenever new Non-Executive and Independent Director(s) are inducted in the Board they are 

introduced to our Company’s culture through appropriate orientation session and they are also 

introduced to our organization structure, our business, constitution, board procedures, our major risk 

and management strategy. 

 

  A formal letter of appointment to Independent Director as provided in Companies Act, 2013, has 

been issued and disclosed on the website of the Company viz. 

http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

h) Performance Evaluation: 

One of the Key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the board evaluation framework. The 

Board works with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria 

for the performance of executive/ non-executive/ independent directors through a peer- evaluation 

excluding the director being evaluated through a survey. The questionnaire of the survey is a key 

part of the process of reviewing the functioning and effectiveness of the Board and for identifying 

possible paths for improvement. Each Board member is requested to evaluate the effectiveness of 

the Board dynamics and relationships, information flow, decision-making of the directors, relationship 

to stakeholders, company performance, company strategy and the effectiveness of the whole Board 

and its various Committees. 

 

i) Materially significant related party transactions: 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions, monetary transactions or 

relationship between the Company and its directors, the management, subsidiaries or relatives.  
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COMMITTEES 

 

Currently, the Board has five committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Share Transfer, Investor Grievances and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 

Committee of Directors, Risk Management Committee. 

 

(A)  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Company has an Audit Committee in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act 2013 and regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

  

The Committee comprises of 2 Non Executive Independent Directors and 1 Promoter Executive 

Director as on 31st March, 2019:  

 

(i.) Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma  - Chairperson 

(ii.) Mr. Ajay S Mittal   - Member 

(iii.) Mr. Pramod Raghavan   - Member 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting held on September 

30, 2019 to answer Member’s queries. 

 

The meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors as 

special invitees. The Committee also invites such of the other Directors or Executives as it considers 

appropriate to be present at the meeting. Minutes of each Audit Committee meeting are placed 

before, and when considered appropriate, are discussed in the meeting of the Board. The Audit 

Committee, inter-alia, reviews the adequacy of the internal control functions, and reviews the Internal 

Audit reports including those related to Internal Control weaknesses, if any. The Audit Committee is 

provided with necessary assistance and information to carry out their functions effectively.  

 

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide supervision of the 

Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest 

level of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Audit Committee oversees the 

work carried out in the financial reporting process by the Management, the internal auditors and the 

independent auditors and notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. All 

recommendation made by the Audit Committee was accepted by the Board. 
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Audit Committee Attendance: 

 

During the year, the Audit Committee met four times during the year on  30th May, 2019, 14th August, 

2019, 14th November, 2019 and 06th February, 2020. 

 

Details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of  Members No. of meetings held No.   of meetings attended 

1 Mr. Ajay S Mittal 4 4 

2 Mr. Mahesh kumar Sharma 4 4 

4 Mr. Pramod Raghavan* 4 4 

  

  Powers and Terms of Reference of the Committee: 

 

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of 

the accounting, auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and 

regulatory requirements. The Committee’s purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial 

reporting process of the Company, the audit of the Company’s financial statements, the appointment, 

independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory auditors, the performance of internal 

auditors and the Company’s risk management policies. The powers, role and terms of reference of 

the Audit Committee covers the areas as contemplated under Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013, as applicable, besides other terms as referred by the Board of Directors. The Committee, inter -

alia, performs the following functions: 

 

1 Overseeing of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

2 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the 

replacement or removal of the statutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees. 

3 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them. 

4 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

 c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management. 
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 d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

 e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

 f. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

 g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 

the board for approval. 

6 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds as and when 

raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 

funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice 

and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a 

public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up 

steps in this matter. 

7 Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and 

adequacy of the internal control systems. 

8 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

9 Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

10 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 

material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

11 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 

of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

12 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults if any in the payment to the depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors. 

13 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same   is existing. 

14 Carrying out any other function as is assigned to the Audit Committee. 

15 Such other powers and duties as may be required to be included in terms of Listing 

Regulation amended from time to time. 

 

(B) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company have a 

duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee comprises of following members as on 31st March, 2020. 

 

(i.) Mr. Pramod Raghavan - Chairman 



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

38 

(ii.) Mr. Ajay S Mittal - Member 

(iii.) Mrs. Shweta Phanse - Member 

The members of the Committee met twice on 14th May,2019 and 14th August,2019 

 The purpose of the Committee is to screen and to review individuals qualified to serve as executive 

directors, non-executive directors and independent directors, consistent with criteria approved by the 

Board, and to recommend, for approval by the Board, nominees for election at the AGM.  

 

The powers, role and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the 

areas as contemplated under Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms as referred by the Board of Directors. The terms of 

reference of the Committee inter-alia, include the following: 

 

 Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee; 

 Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors 

based on certain laid down criteria; 

 Nomination for election or re-election by the shareholders, and any Board vacancies that are 

to be filled. 

 Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and Members of the Executive Committee and their remuneration;  

 Review the performance of the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Members 

of the Executive Committee based on certain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing 

the overall remuneration of the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Executive 

Committee Members, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is reasonable and 

sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the relationship of 

remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and 

that the remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 

term and long term objectives of the Company. 

 It also reviews and discuss all the matters pertaining to candidates and evaluates the candidates. The 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee coordinates and oversees the annual self-evaluation of the 

Board and of individual directors. It also reviews the performance of all Executive Directors on a half-

yearly basis or at such intervals as may be necessary on the basis of detailed performance 

parameters set for each executive director at the beginning of the year. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee may also regularly evaluate the usefulness of such performance 

parameters, and make necessary amendments. 
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The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on our website 

http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee attendance 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Pramod Raghavan, Chairman, Mr. 

Ajay S Mittal and Mrs. Shweta Phanse. Two members shall be the quorum for the meeting of the said 

Committee. The minutes of the Meeting of the Committee shall be placed at the meeting of Board of 

Directors.  

 

During the year two meeting of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee was held during the 

year under review . 

 

 Details of meetings attended by its members till March 31, 2020 are given below: 

 

Sr. No. Name of  Members 
No. of meetings 

held 

No. of meetings 

attended 

1. Mr. Pramod Raghavan -  Chairman 2 2 

2. Mr. Ajay S Mittal – Member 2 2 

3. Mrs. Shweta Phanse- Member 2 2 

 

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

 

 To nominate persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in a 

senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down; 

 

 Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every 

director’s performance; 

 

 To determine the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors 

including pension rights and any compensation payment, including recommendation for fixation 

and periodic revision of compensation policy (including performance bonus, incentives, 

perquisites and benefits) for senior management personnel. 
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy  

 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time. This policy on 

nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has 

been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has 

been approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on website 

http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

(C) Stakeholders & Investor Grievances / Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

 

According to Sec. 178(5), the Chairperson of the Committee shall be a Non‐Executive Director and it 

shall comprise of such other members as may be decided by the Board Directors from time to time.  

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Chairman, Mrs. 

Shweta Phanse and Mr. Pramod Raghavan. Two members shall be the quorum for the meeting of the 

said Committee. The Company Secretary / Compliance Officer of the Company shall be the Secretary 

of the Committee.  

 

The meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held Four time during the year on 

March 31, 2020 i.e. on 30th May,2019, 14th August,2019, 14th November,2019 and 06th 

February,2020. 

 

Details of meeting attended by its members are given below: 

Sr.No. Name of Members No. of meeting/s held No of meeting/s attended 

1.  Mr. Mahesh Kumar 

Sharma 

4 2 

2.  Mrs. Shweta Phanse 4 4 

3.  Mr. Pramod Raghavan 4 4 

  

  ROLE  

 

The Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to resolve the grievances of security holders. The 

Committee monitors and reviews the performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share 
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Transfer Agents of the Company and provides continuous guidance to improve the service levels for 

investors. The broad terms of reference of the Committee are as under: 

 

 to deal and approve shares/securities transfers, request for split, issue of duplicate Shares 

certificate; 

 to delegate Authority to the Senior Executives for approval of transfer and transmission of 

securities issued by the Company; 

 to deal with the Investors complaints; 

 to maintain, develop and improve relations with the investors; 

 to fix record date/book closure of share/debenture transfer book of the Company from time to 

time; 

 to appoint representatives to attend the General Meeting of other companies in which the 

Company is holding shares. 

 

At the beginning of the year, there was no complaint/ correspondence which were pending. During the 

year under review, no complaint was received from the shareholders, either by the Company or 

Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) - M/s Big Share Services Private Ltd., leaving a balance of nil 

complaint as on March, 31, 2020. 

 

  SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES): 

 

SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based 

redress system and online redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The company is in 

compliance with the SCORES and redressed the shareholders complaints well within the stipulated 

time. 

 

(D) COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Committee of Directors comprises of Mr. Ajay S. Mittal, Chairman, Mr. Pramod Raghavan, and 

Mrs. Shweta Phanse. The Committee has been delegated with various powers of the Board to enable 

the Management to take various timely decisions in the best interest of the Company. 

 

The Committee meets as and when required and the Minutes of the Committee of Directors are 

placed at the next meeting of the Board. During the year there was no such meeting was held.  

 

 

 

 



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

42 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

a) Location, time and date where last three Annual General/Extra Ordinary General Meetings/Postal 

Ballot* were held are given below: 

 

Financial Year Date and Time Venue 

2018-2019 AGM –  

30th September, 2019 at 

10.00 a.m. 

302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F 

Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 

400018 

2017-2018 AGM –  

25th September, 2018 at 

03.00 p.m. 

302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F 

Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 

400018 

2016-2017 AGM –  

28th September, 2017at 

03.00 p.m. 

302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F 

Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 

400018 

* There was no meeting held through Postal Ballot in last 3 years. 

 

b) In the last three AGMs/EGMs, following Special Resolutions were passed: 

 

Meetings held on Special Resolution passed 

AGM – 

30th  September, 2019 

Approval for sale of the Company's undertaking in Mega Capital 

Broking Private Limited (MCBPL), a wholly owned material 

subsidiary of the Company 

AGM –  

25th September, 2018 

No Special Resolution 

AGM –  

28 September, 2017 

No Special Resolution 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS WITH RESPECT TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has 

imposed certain compliances with respect to the subsidiary (ies) of the listed entity. As on 31stMarch, 

2020 the Company does not have subsidiary company. 

 

 

 

 

 

DISCLOSURES 
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Disclosure regarding the appointment and re-appointment of directors 

 

       As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Shweta Phanse will retire at ensuing AGM 

and being eligible, seek re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment. The brief 

profile of Mrs. Shweta Phanse is attached in the Notice of this AGM.  

 

Details of Non-Compliance 

 

No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to 

capital markets during the last three years. 

 

Code of Conduct 

 

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has framed and adopted a Code of 

Conduct and Ethics (‘the Code’). The Code is applicable to the members of the Board, the executive 

officers and all employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.  

 

The Code lays down the standard of conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors and by 

the employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work 

place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 

examples on the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the reporting 

structure.  

 

All members of the Board, the executive officers and senior financial officers have affirmed 

compliance to the Code as on 31st March, 2020.  

 

 

CEO and CFO Certification 

 

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the CEO 

and CFO Certification is part of this Report, annexed as Annexure A. 
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

As required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance is annexed as Annexure B. 

 

Certificate by Practicing Company Secretary 

 

The Company has received certificate from Mr. Aabid, Partner of, Aabid & Co., Company Secretaries, 

Practising Company Secretaries, confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by the 

SEBI/Ministry of Corporate of Affairs or any such authority. 

 

The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice is annexed herewith as a part of the report as 

Annexure-C 

 

Prevention of Insider Trading 

 

The policy also includes practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive 

information, initial and continual disclosure. It also prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares 

by the Directors, designated employees and connected persons, while in possession of unpublished 

price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window 

is closed. The Policy is available on our website http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

All Board Directors, designated employees and connected person have affirmed compliance with the 

Code. 

 

Related Party Transactions 

 

All Transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 

pricing basis. The Policy on Related Party Transaction is available on our website 

http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy 

 

In compliance with Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 26(3) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated 

Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report to the management 

about the unethical behaviour, fraud or violation of company’s code of conduct. The mechanism 
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provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of employees and Directors who use such 

mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 

exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the company has been denied access to the Audit 

Committee. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on our website 

http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the accounting Standards 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent applicable and also followed 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Risk Management 

 

Your Company is well aware of risks associated with its business operations and various projects 

under execution. Comprehensively risk management system is being put in place involving 

classification of risk, adoption of risk mitigation measures and a strong mechanism to deal with 

potential risks and situation leading to rise of risks in an effective manner. 

 

Senior Professionals conversant with risk management systems have been entrusted with the said 

task with a brief to implement the risk management. Risk Management Policy of the Company is 

available on the website of the Company http://megafinindia.com/goverance.html 

 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 

 

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of 

Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSIL) and the total issued and paid-up 

capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the Report thereon is submitted to the Bombay 

Stock Exchange and is placed before the board of directors of the Company. The Audit, inter alia, 

confirms that the listed and paid up capital of the company is in agreement with the aggregate of the 

total number of shares in dematerialized form held with NSDL and CDSIL and the total number of 

shares in physical form. 

 

Green initiative in the corporate governance 

 

As part of the green initiative process, the company has taken an initiative of sending documents like 

notice calling Annual General meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Directors Report, audited 
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Financial Statements, Auditors Report, etc., by email. Shareholders are requested to register their 

email id with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent / concerned depository to enable the company to 

send the documents in electronic form or inform the company in case they wish to receive the above 

documents in paper mode. 

 

Implementation of Compliance Management System 

 

Your Company has in place a well-structured Legal Compliance Management System to monitor 

periodical compliances on regular basis and Review Reports are discussed at the Audit Committee 

meetings and Board Meetings. 

 

Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issues, and Preferential Issues etc. 

The Company has not made any public issue or rights issue of Equity Shares during the year and 

hence not received any proceeds therefrom. 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of Annual Report. 

 

Non-mandatory requirements 

 

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is being reviewed by the Board from time-to-time. 

 

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS 

The Company, from time to time and as may be required, communicates with its shareholders and 

investors through multiple channels of communications such as dissemination of information on the 

on-line portal of the Stock Exchanges, press releases, the Annual Reports and uploading relevant 

information on its website. 

 

The unaudited quarterly results are announced within forty-five days of the close of the quarter. The 

Audited annual results are announced within two months form the close of the Financial Year as 

required under SEBI regulations. The aforesaid financial results are announced to the Stock 

Exchanges within thirty minutes from the close of the Board Meeting at which these were considered 

and approved. Further the results are published according to the SEBI Regulations. 
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The audited financial statements form part of this Annual Report which is sent to the Members within 

the statutory period and well in advance of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly/half yearly and the audited financial results and the 

press releases of the Company are also placed on the Company’s website www.megafinindia.com 

and can be downloaded. 

 

The presentations on the performance of the Company are placed on the Company’s website 

immediately after these are communicated to the Stock Exchanges for the benefit of the institutional 

investors and analyst and other shareholders. 

 

The Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all information required to be disclosed under 

Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III of the SEBI Regulations including material information 

having a bearing on the performance / operations of the listed entity or other price sensitive 

information. All information is filed electronically on BSE’s online Portal – BSE Corporate Compliance 

& Listing Centre (Listing Centre). 

 

The Board of Directors has approved a policy for determining materiality of events for the purpose of 

making disclosure to the Stock Exchanges.  

 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

a) The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are usually published in Free Press Journal/ 

Active times/ Navashakti/ Mumbai Lakshadeep. 

 

b) The Company has its own website viz. www.megafinindia.com and the financial results and quarterly 

shareholding pattern along with other relevant information useful to the investors are uploaded on the 

website regularly. 

 

c) The ‘Investors’ section on the Company’s website keeps the investors updated on material 

developments in the Company by providing key and timely information like Financial Results, Annual 

Reports, Shareholding Pattern, presentations made to institutional investors and analysts etc. A brief 

profile of Directors is also on the Company‘s website. Members also have the facility of raising their 

queries/complaints on share related matters through a facility provided on the Company’s website.  

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

a) 38thAGM Date:  September 30, 2020 
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Time:    11:30 a.m. 

Venue: Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means in 

accordance with the relevant circulars issued by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

b) Investor Services 

Financial Calendar for 

2019 - 2020 (Tentative) 

i. 1st quarter results- on or before 14th September, 2020 

ii. 2nd quarter results- on or before 14th November, 2020 

iii. 3rd quarter results- on or before 14th February, 2021 

iv. Audited results for the year- on or before 30th May, 

2021 

c) Date of Book Closure 24thSeptember, 2020 to 30th September, 2020 (both days 

inclusive) 

d) Dividend payment date  NA 

e) Listing on Stock 

Exchanges 

BSE Limited. 

The Company has paid the Listing fees for the year 2020-

2021. 

f) Stock Code Symbol  BSE:  532105 

 

g) Demat ISIN Number  INE524D01015 

 

h) Market Price Data and Relative Performance:  

The monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on BSE and BSE B/S&P BSE SENSEX during 

each month in last financial year are as follows: 

 

Month 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)* B/S&P BSE SENSEX* 

Month’s High 

Price (in Rs. 

Per Share) 

Month’s Low 

Price (in Rs. 

Per Share) 

Month’s 

Volume 
Month’s High  

Month’s 
Low  

April-19 8,87 9.05 - 39487.45 38460.25 

May-19 8,87 8,87 - 40124.96 36956.1 

June-19 8,87 8,87 - 40312.07 38870.96 

July-19 8,87 8,87 - 40032.41 37128.26 

August-19 8,87 8,87 - 37807.55 36102.35 

September-

19 
8,87 8,87 

- 
39441.12 35987.8 

October-19 8,87 8,87 - 40392.22 37415.83 
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November-

19 
8,87 8,87 

- 
41163.79 40014.23 

December -

19 
8,87 8,87 

- 
41809.96 40135.37 

January-20 8,87 8,87 - 42273.87 40476.55 

February-

20 
8,87 8,87 

- 
41709.3 38219.97 

March-20 8,87 8,87 - 39083.17 25638.9 

 

  *Source: www.bseindia.com 

  

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: 

 

             Bigshare Services Private Ltd. 

 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 

 Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makhwana Road, 

 Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 059 

 Tel.: 91-22-62638200 

  Fax: 91-22-62638299E-mail: info@bigshareonline.com 

 

   Share Transfer System: 

 

All shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

within 15 days of the lodgement, if documents are found in order. All requests for dematerialization of 

shares are processed and the confirmation is given to the respective depository’s i.e. National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) within 15 

days. 

 

Category wise distribution of equity shareholding as at March 31, 2020: 

 

Category No. of Shares Held % age of Shareholding 

Promoter and Promoter Group 1742220 43.01 

Mutual Fund 20000 0.24 

Trust 233920 2.86 

FII 0 0 

Bodies Corporate 2411800 29.50 
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Individual 1993700 24.39 

Clearing Member 0 0 

Employee 0 0 

NRI 0 0 

Foreign National 0 0 

Foreign Company 0 0 

GRAND TOTAL 8175500 100 

 

 Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2020:  

 

Number of Equity shares 

held  
Total Holders 

% of total 

holders 

Total Holding 

in Rs. 

% of Total 

Capital 

01                5000 440 70.97 216600 2.65 

5001    -     10000 46 7.42 44800 0.55 

10001  -     20000 19 3.06 31200 0.38 

20001  -     30000 15 2.42 35200 0.43 

30001  -     40000 4 0.65 13700 0.17 

40001  -     50000 2 0.32 8300 0.10 

50001  -   100000 10 1.61 75200 0.92 

100001-99999999 84 13.55 7750500 94.80 

Total  620 100 8175500 100 

 

  Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

Approximately 0.35% of the total number of shares are in dematerialized form as on 31st March 2020. The 

Equity shares of the Company are traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. 

 

Outstanding ADRs, GDRs, warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and impact on equity: 

 

No ADRs or GDRs, or any other convertible instruments were outstanding for conversion as on March 31, 

2020. 

 

 Address for investor correspondence: 

 

All routine correspondence regarding share transfers, transmission,dematerialization of shares, change of 

address, non-receipt of dividend, etc., should be addressed to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agent at: 
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BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LTD. 

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makhwana Road, 

Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 059 

Tel.: 91-22-62638200 

Fax: 91-22-62638299 

 E-mail: info@bigshareonline.com 

 

For complaints/grievances, if any, members are requested to address the same to:  

 

 Mega Fin (India) Limited 

Email: info@megafinindia.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office &  Corporate Office 

302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 

400018 

Phone No. +91 22 4230 5500 

Fax No. +91 22 4230 5555 
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Annexure A 

 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

We, Mahesh Mahatre, Chief Executive Officer and Ms. Sonal Gupta Chief Financial Officer of Mega Fin 

(India) Limited appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 17(8) of Listing Obligation 

& Disclosure Requirement, certify to the Board that: 

 

A.  I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best 

of our knowledge and belief: 

1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

B.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

 

C.   I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to 

financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 

design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have 

taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

D.  I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee  

 

1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

3) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 

of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control 

system over financial reporting. 

 

For Mega Fin (India) Limited 

        Mahesh Mhatre      Sonal Gupta  

 

        Date: 02nd  September, 2020                          Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

         Place: Mumbai                                                              
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Annexure- B 

To 

The Members, 

MEGA FIN (INDIA) LIMITED 

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, 

F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, 

Mumbai 400018 Maharashtra 

Re: Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by MEGA FIN (INDIA) LIMITED, 

for the year ended on March 31st, 2020 as per the relevant provisions of Securities Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) as referred to in 

Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations for the financial year ended March 31st, 2019. 

  

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 

compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an Audit nor an expression of opinion 

on the financial statements of the Company. 

  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that 

the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 

mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable. 

  

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. subject to the following observation: 

 

1.    Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 require 

every Listed Company to formulate a policy on preservation of documents which has to be approved 

by the Board of Directors. The Company is in the process of formulating and adopting such policy. 

 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai For Aabid & Co 

Date: 02nd September, 2020 Company Secretaries 

Shweta Dinesh Sharma 

Partner 

Membership No.: A23466 

COP No.: 22002 
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Annexure- C 

 

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by Mega Fin (India) Limited, having its Registered office at 302,Ceejay House, Level 3, Shiv Sagar 

Estate-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018, Maharashtra and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives, we hereby report that during 

the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020, in our opinion, none of the director on the Board of the 

Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of Company by 

the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory authority. 

 

For Aabid& Co.,  

Practicing Company Secretary 

 

Shweta Dinesh Sharma 

Partner 

Membership No.: A23466 

COP No.: 22002 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 02nd September, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

 

 

  



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

55 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Members of  

MEGA FIN (INDIA) LIMITED 

 

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Arshiya Limited (‘the 

Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March 2020, and its financial 

performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standard on Auditing specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit if the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India (ICAI) together with the independence requirement that are relevant to our audit of the Financial 

Statement under the provision of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Financial Statements.  
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Key Audit Matters 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report. 

a. The Financial statement have been prepared by the management on a going concern basis even 

though the company has substantial accumulated losses, its activity is stand still and it has eroded its 

Net Worth in respect of which we are unable to express an opinion whether the Company can now 

operate as a going concern or not. 

 

Other Matter 

The Company had prepared the audited financial statements for the corresponding year ended 31st March, 

2019 and transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2018 in accordance with the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 referred to in Section 133 of the Act, on which Kankani Jain & Chopra, 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 138552W) vide their audit report dated 30th May, 2019 and 14th 

May 2018, respectively, had issued an unmodified audit report. The financial statements for the year ended 

31st March, 2019 and transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April, 2018 are based on previously 

audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 

as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS, 

which have been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of above said matter. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 

Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report & Shareholder’s Information, but done not 

include financial statement and  our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statement or 

our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and  

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant 

rules there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 

under.  
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the Annexure “A” 

a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Further to our comments in the Annexures referred to above, we report that :  

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in 

agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules there under; 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”; 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

Information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have pending litigations which has been shown in notes forming parts of 

financial statements that would impact its financial position as on 31st March, 2020. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

For Kankani Jain & Chopra 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 138552W 

 

 

Prateek Jain 

Partner      Place: Mumbai 

Membership No.422302   Date:  22nd May, 2020        

UDIN: 20422302AAAAAU4536          
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 “Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report  

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our 

report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020) 

 

1) Since the Company does not have any fixed assets during the year, this clause is not applicable. 

2) Since the Company does not have any Inventory during the year, this clause is not applicable. 

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. But the 

company has done expense on behalf of the parties covered in the register maintained under section 

189 of the Act. 

4)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, 

investments, guarantees, and security.  

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 

Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted 

from the public are not applicable.  

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central 

Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by 

the company. 

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service 

Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the 

appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 

amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more 

than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 

sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any 
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dispute except those which have been shown under Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets of the Notes to Account to the Financials.  

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan either from 

financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures.  

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order 

are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees 

has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the 

requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 

Companies Act. 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by 

the applicable accounting standards. 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company and hence not commented upon. 
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16) In our opinion, the company is required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934 and the registration has been obtained. 

 

For Kankani Jain & Chopra 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 138552W 

 

 

Prateek Jain 

Partner      Place: Mumbai 

Membership No.422302   Date:  22nd May, 2020        

UDIN: 20422302AAAAAU4536    
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 

report of even date to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31st 

March 2020. 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mega Fin (India) Limited (“the 

Company”), as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for 

the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to 

obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
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their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute Of Chartered Accountants Of India. 

 

For Kankani Jain & Chopra 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 138552W 

 

 

Prateek Jain 

Partner                   Place: Mumbai 

Membership No.: 422302   Date:  22nd May, 2020    

UDIN: 20422302AAAAAU4536          
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 Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020  

                                                 (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Notes 
 As at 

31st March, 2020  

 As at 

31st March 2019  

 As at 
1st April, 2018  

I. ASSETS         

(i) Financial Assets         

       (a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2                75,909                 65,134         57,124 

       (b) Loans 3          23,645,304           22,477,176           20,739,338  

       (c) Investments 4                       -                 271,000               271,000  

       (d) Other Financial Assets 5              224,553               376,084               165,000  

         

T O T A L            23,945,767           23,189,395  21,232,462 

II. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY                 

(i) Financial Liabilities         

      (a) Borrowings 6            4,972,009             3,470,823            1,894,409 

      (b) Other Financial Liabilities 7              572,143               611,367  188,308 

(ii) Equity         

      (a) Equity Share Capital 8          91,778,500           91,778,500           91,778,500  

      (b) Other Equity 9         (73,376,885)         (72,671,295)         (72,671,295) 

          

T O T A L 
  

23,945,767 23,189,395 21,232,462 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies   1 

See accompanying notes forming part to the Financial Statements 

  

                      -    

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 of Mega Fin (India) Limited 
  

For Kankani Jain  & Chopra  

Chartered Accountants   

Firm Registration No.:138552W 

  

    

  

Prateek Jain Ajay S. Mittal Shweta Atul Phanse 

Partner Director            Director 

Membership No: 422302 DIN: 00226355         DIN: 07146218 

UDIN : 20422302AAAAAU4536 

  

Place: Mumbai   
Date: 22nd May, 2020         
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ending March 31, 2020  

                                                                                                      (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Notes Year ended 31st March, 2020 Year Ended 31st March, 2019 

 I. Revenue        

 Interest Income  10 2,245,527 2,110,846 

 Other Income  11 7,368 - 

 Total Income    2,252,895 2,110,846 

 II. Expenses    

 Employee Benefit Expenses  12 1,338,000 1,678,333 

 Other Expenses  13 806,525 475,053 

 Total Expenses    2,144,525 2,153,386 

 III. Profit / (Loss) for the year before exceptional 

items and tax (I - II)    108,370 (42,540) 

 Less : Exceptional Items     - 

             -BST Demand Payment in Amnesty 

Scheme  15 813,960 

 IV. Profit / (Loss) for the year before tax    (705,590) (42,540) 

 Tax Expenses    

 Current Tax    - - 

 Deferred Tax    - - 

 VIII.  Profit/(Loss) for the year    (705,590) (42,540) 

 Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)    

 Item that will not be subsequently reclassified to 

profit or loss    - - 

 Income tax effect relating to items that will not be   

subsequently  reclassified to profit or loss    - - 

 Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit 

or loss    - - 

 Income Tax relating to Item that will be 

subsequently reclassified to profit or loss    - - 

 Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss for the Year)    - - 

 Total Comprehensive Income for the year    (705,590) (42,540) 

 IX. Earning per Equity Share:  17 

        (1) Basic    (0.08) (0.00) 

        (2) Diluted    (0.08) (0.00) 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  1    

See accompanying notes forming part to the Financial Statements    

 As per our report of even date   

 For Kankani Jain  & Chopra                                For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mega Fin (India) Limited                                                                                                                         

 Chartered Accountants     

 Firm Registration No.:138552W    
   

 
 

 Prateek Jain  Ajay S. Mittal  Shweta Atul Phanse 

 Partner  Director 
  

Director 

 Membership No: 422302  DIN: 00226355  DIN: 07146218 

 UDIN : 20422302AAAAAU4536    
   

 
 

 Place: Mumbai    
   

 
 

 Date: 22nd May, 2020        
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

  (Amount in Rs.)  

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

A. Cash Flow from  Operating Activities:     

        

  Net Profit/(Loss) before tax                      (705,590)                      (42,540) 

   Adjustment for Non- Cash & Non Operating Items                               -                                -   

  Operating Profit before Working Capital Charges                     (705,590)                      (42,540) 

        

  Movements in Working Capital     

  (Increase) / Decrease in Loans                  (1,168,128)                  (1,737,838) 

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Asset                      151,531                      (211,084) 

  Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings                   1,501,186                    1,576,414  

  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities                      (39,224)                      423,059  

        

  Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities                     (260,225)                         8,011  

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:     

  (Increase) / Decrease in Investments                      271,000                               -   

  Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities                      271,000                               -   

        

C. Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities                              -                                -   

  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)                       10,775                          8,011  

  Cash and Cash Equivalent (Opening Balance)                       65,134                        57,124  

  Cash and Cash Equivalent (Closing Balance)                       75,909                        65,135  

      

  Note:   

1) Cash and cash equivalent includes Cash and Bank balances.   

2) This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.   

3) The above cash flow has been prepared using Indirect Method as per IND AS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows" as specified in the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015   

      

  For Kankani Jain  & Chopra  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  Chartered Accountants of Mega Fin (India) Limited 

  Firm Registration No.:138552W   

    

    

  Prateek Jain Ajay S. Mittal Shweta Atul Phanse 

  Partner Director Director 

  Membership No: 422302 DIN: 00226355 DIN: 07146218 

  UDIN : 20422302AAAAAU4536   

    

  Place: Mumbai   

  Date: 22nd May, 2020     



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

70 

 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  

  
    

 Note 2 : Cash and Cash Equivalents  
  

 (Amount in Rs.)  

 Particulars  
As at                        

31st March, 2020 

As at  

31st March, 2019 

 As at                        

1st April, 2018   

 Balance with Banks              21,314                10,539               2,529   
 Cash on Hand              54,595                54,595             54,595   

 TOTAL              75,909                65,134             57,124   

  
  

   
 Note 3 : Financial Assets - Loans  

  
   

 Particulars  
 As at                        

31st March, 2020  

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at                        

1st April, 2018   

 Loans Given         
 Unsecured, Considered good  23,645,304 22,477,176 20,739,338  

 TOTAL  23,645,304 22,477,176 20,739,338  

 3.1 Loans Given include Rs.2,36,45,304/- (P.Y.:Rs.2,22,47,176/-) due from companies in which directors are interested 

as directors/members.   

  
  

   
3.2 Loans Given (Gross) of Rs.2,36,45,304/- (P.Y.:Rs.2,22,47,176/-)  are outstanding for a long period and there are no 

repayments/interest recovery.   

  
  

   

 3.3.The management is of the opinion that the amounts mentioned in point 3.1 and 3.2 are good and recoverable and 

hence that the aforesaid amounts are good and recoverable and hence no provision for bad debts/ expected credit loss 

has been made.  
 

    

 Note 4 : Non-Current Investments     (Amount in 

Rs.) 

Particulars 
As at  

31st March, 2020 

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at  

31st March, 

2018  

A. Investments       

In Equity Instruments       

Investment in Subsidiary (Unquoted)                         -    2,710,000 2,710,000 

Less : Change in fair value through profit & loss - Equity                         -    2,439,000 2,439,000 

Total (A)                         -    271,000 271,000 

        

B. Other Investments       

(a) Investment in Equity Instruments       



 MEGA FIN ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – 2020 
  
  

 

 

 

71 

   (i) Quoted Shares 47,500 47,500 47,500 

Less : Change in fair value through profit & loss 47,500 47,500 47,500 

                          -                            -                            

-    

        

  (ii) Unquoted Shares 3,492,524 3,492,524 3,492,524 

Less : Change in fair value through profit & loss 3,492,524 3,492,524 3,492,524 

                          -                            -                            

-    

        

Total (B)                         -                            -                            

-    

        

Grand Total (A+B)                         -                   271,000                 

271,000  

        

        

Particulars 
As at  

31st March, 2020 

As at  

31st March, 2019 

As at  

31st March, 

2018 

Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments 47,500 47,500 47,500 

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments  - - - 

Aggregate Cost of Unquoted Investments  3,492,524 6,202,524 6,202,524 

 

Note 5 : Other Financial Assets    
  

 Particulars  
 As at                        

31st March, 2020  

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at                        

1st April, 

2018  

 TDS Receivable   224,553 211,084 - 

 BST Demand under protest  - 165,000 165,000 

 TOTAL  224,553 376,084 165,000 

   

 Note 6 : Borrowings     (Amount in 

Rs.) 

Particulars 
 As at                        

31st March, 2020  

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at                        

1st April, 

2018  

Unsecured Loans* 4,972,009 3,470,823 1,894,409 

Total 4,972,009 3,470,823 1,894,409 
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 Note 7 : Other Financial Liabilities  (Amount in 

Rs.) 

Particulars 
 As at                        

31st March, 2020  

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at                        

1st April, 

2018  

Outstanding Expenses 454,085 525,191 140,456 

Statutory Dues 118,058 86,176 47,852 

Total 572,143 611,367 188,308 

 

   
 Note 8 : Share Capital     (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 As at 31st March, 2020   As at 31st March 2019   As at 1st April, 2018  

 Number   Rs.   Number   Rs.   Number   Rs.  

                

Authorised             

9% Redeemable Cumulative 

Preference share of Rs. 100 

each 100 10,000 100 10,000 100 10,000 

Equity Share of Rs 10/- each 10,999,000 109,990,000 10,999,000 109,990,000 10,999,000 109,990,000 

    

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each 

fully paid 9,177,850 91,778,500 9,177,850 91,778,500 9,177,850 91,778,500 

Total 9,177,850 91,778,500 9,177,850 91,778,500 9,177,850 91,778,500 

          
          

a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period     

Particulars 
 As at 31st March, 2020   As at 31st March 2019   As at 1st April, 2018  

Number Rs. Number Rs. Number Rs. 

Shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the year (incl. 

10,02,350 Forfeited Shares ) 

            

9,177,850  

          

91,778,500  

          

9,177,850  

        

91,778,500  

        

9,177,850  

   

91,778,500  

Shares Issued during the year  
                       

-    

                       

-    

                     

-    

                     

-    

                   

-    
                -   

Shares bought back during the 

year 

                       

-    

                       

-    

                     

-    

                     

-    

                   

-    
                -   

Shares outstanding at the end 

of the year 

            

9,177,850  

          

91,778,500  

          

9,177,850  

        

91,778,500  

        

9,177,850  

   

91,778,500  
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Preference Shares 

 

The authorised capital structure of the company includes 9% Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares having a par value 

of Rs. 100/-per share. Holder of preference shares have preference in right to receive dividend in case company proposes to 

distribute and pay the same. Maximum dividend which can be distributed and paid to preference shareholders is 9% of the 

paid up amount of the preference share capital. Holder of preference share is not entitled to vote unlike holder of equity sh

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of preference shares will have priority as compared to equity 

shareholders in distribution of assets of the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of preference sha

held by the shareholders. 

          

Equity Shares         

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-per share. Each holder of equity 

 shares is entitled to vote per share. The Company declares and pay dividends in indian rupees. The dividend  

proposed by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 

 Meeting. 

 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will entitled to receive remaning assets of the 

 company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity share

 held by the shareholders. 

 

c) Detail of Sharholders holding more than 5% of shares in the company 

  
 

Name of Shareholder  

 As at 31st March, 2020   As at 31st March 

2019  

 As at 1st April, 

2018   

No. of 

Shares 

held 

% of 

Holding 

No. of 

Shares held 

% of 

Holdin

g 

No. of 

Shares 

held 

% of 

Holdi

ng 
 

Mr. Ajay S Mittal 789,000 9.65 789,000 9.65 789,000 9.65 
 

Sunwell Farm Private Limited 2,250,000 27.52 2,250,000 27.52 2,250,000 27.52 
      

 

 Note 9 : Reserves & Surplus  (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 As at 31st 

March, 2020  

 As at 31st  

March 2019  

 As at                        

1st April, 2018  

a. Capital Reserves       

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Balance as at the end of the year 1,000 1,000 1,000 

       

b. Special Reserves    

Balance as at the beginning of the year 179,642 179,642 179,642 

Balance as at the end of the year 179,642 179,642 179,642 

       

c. Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of    
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profit and  loss  

Balance as at the beginning of the year (72,851,937) (72,809,397) (69,877,424) 

Change in value of investment at FVTPL   - (1,292,583) 

Total Comprehensive Income / (loss) for 

the year 

(705,590) (42,540) (1,639,390) 

Balance as at the end of the year (73,557,527) (72,851,937) (72,809,397) 

Total (73,376,885) (72,671,295) (72,628,755) 

 

Note 10 : Interest Income   (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Interest Received                2,245,527                2,110,846  

Total               2,245,527                2,110,846  

    

   

Note 11 : Other Income (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Sundry Balance Written Back                     7,368                           -    

Total                     7,368                           -    

    

   

Note 12 : Employee Benefit Expenses   (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Salaries               1,338,000                1,678,333  

Total               1,338,000                1,678,333  

    

   

Note 13 : Other Expenses  (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Advertisement Expenses                   61,554                    40,269  

Audit Fees ( Note no. 14)                   64,900                    56,050  

Legal & Professional Fees                 170,483                    45,154  

Late Charges                  110,863                      4,097  

Listing Fees                 354,000                  295,000  

Bank Charges                     5,377                      2,033  

Custodian Charges                   27,384                    32,450  
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Office Expenses                     1,851                           -    

ROC Filing Fees                   10,113                           -    

Total                 806,525                  475,053  

    

   

Note 14 : Payment to Statutory Auditors  (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Audit Fees incl. Limited Review                   64,900                    56,050  

Tax Audit                          -                             -    

Other Services                          -                             -    

Total                   64,900                    56,050  

    

Note 15 : Exceptional Items    

The company has paid the demand raised by Bombay Sale Tax Department of Rs. 8,13,960/- for the financial year 

1993-94, 1994-95, 1995-96, 1996-97 and 1998-99 under Amnesty Scheme.  

    

   

Note 16 : Reconciliation of Income Tax Expenses (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 Year Ended 31st 

March 2020  

 Year Ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Profit before Tax                (705,590)                  (42,540) 

(Allowances) / Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961                          -                             -    

Taxable (loss)  / profit                (705,590)                  (42,540) 

Income Tax Expense recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss                          -                             -    

    

Note 17 : Deferred Taxes   

The company has not recognised deferred tax assets on brought forward business losses, capital losses unabsorbed 

depreciation and other deductible timing differences since there is no certainty that future taxable profits against which 

such losses could be utilised would be available. 

    

Note 18 : Earnings per Share  (Amount in Rs.) 

 Particulars  
 As at  

31st March, 2020  

 As at  

31st March, 2019  

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity  

shareholders : Continuing operations (A)                (705,590)                  (42,540) 

Weighted average number of equity  

shares (B)               9,177,850                9,177,850  

Face value per Share                     10.00                      10.00  

      

Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B)                      (0.08)                      (0.00) 
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Diluted Earnings per Share (A/B)                      (0.08)                      (0.00) 

  

   

Note 19 : Contingent Liabilities   

The company does not have any contingent liabilities.   

      

 

 Note 20: Related Party Transactions  

  

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related 

party, related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where 

control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods are mentioned in 

below points 

        

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures 

          

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship 
Country of 

Incorporation 

Archana Mittal Relative of Key Managerial Personnel   

Mega Custodial Services 

Limited 
Associate Concern India 

Mega Management 

Services Private Limited 
Associate Concern India 

          

The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the 

requirements of INDAS-24 and the same has been relied upon by the Auditors. 

          

(ii) The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follows : 

          

Name Nature of Transaction 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 

Archana Mittal 

 Payment of Expenses on behalf of 

company  

         1,513,185          1,576,413  

 Loan repayment                12,000                     -    

Mega Management 

Services Private Limited 

 Payment of Expenses on behalf of 

company  

         1,313,930            161,924  

 Loan Given             250,000                     -    

 Reversal of TDS             211,084                     -    

 Interest on Loan Given           2,020,974          1,899,762  

          

(iii) Closing Balances       
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Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 

Loans from related parties     

Archana Mittal            3,888,758          2,787,573  

Loans taken from related parties     

Mega Custodial Services Limited          3,060,000          3,060,000  

Mega Management Services Private Limited        20,585,304        19,417,176  

 

Note 21 : Fair Value Measurements 

    

              

i) Fair Value of Financial assets and Financial liabilities 

          

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that 

are recognised in the financial statements. 

Particulars 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018 

 Carrying 

Amount  
 Fair Value  

 Carrying 

Amount  
 Fair Value  

 Carrying 

Amount  
 Fair Value  

Financial assets designated at 

Amortised Cost 
            

        (a) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents  

           

75,909  

                

75,909  

                

65,134  

                

65,134  

                  

57,124  

                

57,124  

        (b) Loans  
          

23,645,304  

          

23,645,304  

          

22,477,176  

          

22,477,176  

            

20,739,338  

          

20,739,338  

         (c) Investments in 

Subsidiary  

                       

-    

                       

-    

              

271,000  

               

271,000  

                

271,000  

               

271,000  

        (d) Other Financial Assets  
               

224,553  

               

224,553  

              

376,084  

               

376,084  

                

165,000  

               

165,000  

              

Financial assets designated at 

FVTPL 
            

         (a) Investments in Unquoted 

Shares  

                       

-    

                       

-    
  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total           

23,945,767  

          

23,945,767  

          

23,189,395  

          

23,189,395  

            

21,232,462  

          

21,232,462  

Financial liabilities designated at 

Amortised Cost 
            

      (a) Borrowings 

            

4,972,009  

            

4,972,009  

            

3,470,823  

            

3,470,823  

             

1,894,409  

            

1,894,409  

      (b) Other Financial Liabilities 

               

572,143  

               

572,143  

              

611,367  

               

611,367  

                

188,308  

               

188,308  

Total 

            

5,544,152  

            

5,544,152  

            

4,082,190  

            

4,082,190  

             

2,082,717  

            

2,082,717  
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(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair  value 

          

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most 

relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be 

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. 

 

(iii) Fair value hierarchy 

             

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determing the fair values of the financial instruments that are: 

(a)recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in 

the financial statements.To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group 

has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.An explanation of 

each level follows underneath the table:  

 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 

instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 

bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 

funds are valued using closing NAV. 

 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market(for example, traded bonds,over the 

counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely 

as little as possible on entity -specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 

the instrument are included in Level 2. 

 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,the instrument is included in Level 

3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in Level 3. 

The carrying amount of trade receivable, trade payable, other financial liabilities, other financial assets, cash and cash 

equivalents as of 31st March 2020, 31st March, 2019 and 1st April, 2018 are considered to be the same as fair values, 

due to their short term nature. These are classified as Level 3 due to inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter 

party credit risk. 

              

Financial assets and liabilities 

measured  

at fair value-recurring fair value 

measurements 

As at March 31, 2020 

Notes 

Cost 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial investments at FVTPL             

Investment in Shares - Quoted 4 

                

47,500  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    
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Investment in Shares - Unquoted 4 

            

3,492,524  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total financial assets   

            

3,540,024  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

              

              

Financial assets and liabilities 

measured  

at fair value-recurring fair value 

measurements 

As at March 31, 2019 

Notes Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial investments at FVTPL              

Investment in Shares - Quoted 4  

                

47,500  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Investment in Shares - Unquoted 4  

            

3,492,524  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total financial assets   

            

3,540,024  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

              

              

Financial assets and liabilities 

measured  

at fair value-recurring fair value 

measurements 

As at April 1, 2018 

Notes Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial investments at FVTPL              

Investment in Shares - Quoted 4  

                

47,500  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Investment in Shares - Unquoted 4  

            

3,492,524  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total financial assets   

            

3,540,024  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

              

              

Note 22 : Financial Risk Management         

              

Financial Risk Factors             

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables The main purpose of these 

financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company has loan, trade and other 

receivables,  cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The Company’s activities expose it to a 

variety of financial risks: 
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i) Market Risk 

 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans, borrowings, deposits and investments. Interest 

rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.  

 

ii) Credit Risk             

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with bank(s) / other company, as well as credit exposure to 

counter party that will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. 

The company is exposed to credit risk in respect of loans given. 

iii) Equity Price Risk           
  

The company's investments in unquoted shares are subject to change on account of change in net worth of the company. 

iv) Liquidity Risk             

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations 

without incurring unacceptable losses. 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availibility of 

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market 

positions. 

 

Maturity Analysis of Assets and 

Liabilities             

              

Particulars 

 As at 31st March, 2020  

Carrying 

Amount 

Less than 3 

Months 

3 Months 

to 12 

Months 

12 Months 

to 36 

Months 

36 Months to 

60 Months 

More 

than 60 

Months 

Financial assets              

        (a) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents  

                

75,909  

                

75,909  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (b) Loans  
          

23,645,304  

                       

-    

          

23,645,304  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (c) Investments  
                       

-    

                       

-    

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (d) Other Financial Assets  
               

224,553  

               

224,553  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total 23,945,767 300,462 23,645,304 - - - 

Financial liabilities              

      (a) Borrowings 

            

4,972,009  

                       

-    

            

4,972,009  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    
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      (b) Other Financial Liabilities 

               

572,143  

               

572,143  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total 

            

5,544,152  

               

572,143  

            

4,972,009  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

              

Particulars 

 As at 31st March, 2019  

Carrying 

Amount 

Less than 3 

Months 

3 Months 

to 12 

Months 

12 Months 

to 36 

Months 

36 Months to 

60 Months 

More 

than 60 

Months 

Financial assets              

        (a) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents  

                

65,134  

                

65,134  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (b) Loans  
          

22,477,176  

                       

-    

          

22,477,176  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (c) Investments  
               

271,000  

               

271,000  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (d) Other Financial Assets  
               

376,084  

               

376,084  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total           

23,189,395  

               

712,218  

          

22,477,176  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Financial liabilities              

       (a) Borrowings  
            

3,470,823  

                       

-    

            

3,470,823  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

       (b) Other Financial Liabilities  
               

611,367  

               

611,367  
  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total 

            

4,082,190  

               

611,367  

            

3,470,823  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

              

Particulars 

 As at 1st April, 2018  

Carrying 

Amount 

Less than 3 

Months 

3 Months 

to 12 

Months 

12 Months 

to 36 

Months 

36 Months to 

60 Months 

More 

than 60 

Months 

Financial assets              

        (a) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents  

                

57,124  

                

57,124  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (b) Loans  
          

20,739,338  

                       

-    

          

20,739,338  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (c) Investments  
               

271,000  

               

271,000  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

        (d) Other Financial Assets  
               

165,000  

               

165,000  

                       

-    

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    

Total                                                                                      
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21,067,462  328,124  20,739,338  -    -    

Financial liabilities              

       (a) Borrowings  
            

1,894,409  

                       

-    

            

1,894,409  

                       

-    

                         

-    

                       

-    
       (b) Other Financial 
Liabilities  

               
188,308  

               
188,308  

                       
-    

                       
-    

                         
-    

                       
-    

Total 
            

2,082,717  
               

188,308  
            

1,894,409  
                       
-    

                         
-    

  

 

Note 23 : First time Adoption of Ind AS     

 

These financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2020, are the first financial statements the Company has 

prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company 

prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (Previous GAAP). 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 

31st March, 2020, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as described 

in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance 

sheet was prepared as at 1st April, 2018, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal 

adjustments made by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 

1st April, 2017 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2018. 

 

Exemptions applied: 

Ind AS 101 allows, first time adopters, certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under 

Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions: 

 

• The Company has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint 

venture as deemed cost as on the date of transition to Ind AS. 

 

Exceptions: 

 

The following mandatory exceptions have been applied in accordance with Ind AS 101 in preparing the financial 

statements. 

 

i) Estimates 

The estimates at 1st April, 2018 and at 31st March, 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in 

accordance with Previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences if any, in accounting policies) apart from the 

following items where application of Previous GAAP did not require estimation: 

 

- FVPTL / FVOCI – equity and debt instrument 

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model 

 

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with the Ind AS reflect conditions as at the 
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transition date and as at 1st April, 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of 31st March, 2019. 

ii) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances 

that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

 

Notes to Adjustments : 

 

A. Investments 

 

Under the Previous GAAP, the Company had accounted for long term investment measured at cost less provision for 

other than temporary diminution in the value of investments, Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair 

value. 

 

Under Ind AS the company has all the investments in equity instruments at FVTPL except the investment in subsidiaries 

and accordingly the Gain / Loss on the fair valuation of investments through FVTPL as on the transition date is adjusted 

against retained earnings. 

 

Under Ind AS, the Company has designated investments in subsidiary at amortised cost. All other investments except this 

are designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) resulting fair value changes of the investments is recognised 

in equity as at the date of transition and subsequently in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 

2019. 

      

Note 24 : Reconciliation of Equity previously reported as per Indian GAAP and that computed under IND AS 

 Particulars  
 As at  

31st March, 2019  

 As at  

1st April, 2018  

Equity as per Previous GAAP              (71,378,712)              (71,336,172) 

Summary of Ind AS Adjustments :     

Fair value change on financial asset carried at FVTPL                (1,292,583)                (1,292,583) 

Equity Reported under IND AS              (72,671,295)              (72,628,755) 

      

Note 25 : Statement of reconciliation of Net Profit as per Ind AS and previous GAAP 

 Particulars  
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2019  

Profit as per previous GAAP                    (42,540) 

Ind AS Adjustments                            -    

Profit as per IND AS                    (42,540) 

    

Note 26 : Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows   

There were no material differences betweeen statement of cash flows presented under Ind AS and Previous GAAP. 
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Note 27 : Segment Reporting     

The Main Business of the company is Investment activity, hence there are no reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 on 

"operating segment. 
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